SAN FRANCISCO HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION M I N U T E S May 27, 2021 Regular Meeting

The regular meeting of the Human Services Commission was held on Thursday, May 27, 2021 virtually & telephonically pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20 and the Twelfth Supplement to Mayoral Proclamation Declaring the Existence of a Local Emergency dated February 25, 2020.

MEMBERS PRESENT REMOTELY (VIA ZOOM)	SCOTT KAHN, President JAMES MCCRAY, JR., Vice President RITA SEMEL DARSHAN SINGH GEORGE YAMASAKI, JR.
OTHERS PRESENT REMOTELY (VIA ZOOM)	Trent Rhorer, Executive Director Elizabeth LaBarre, Executive Assistant to the Executive Director / Secretary – Human Services Commission Dan Kaplan, Deputy Director – Finance and Administration Joan Miller, Deputy Director – Family & Children's Services Susie Smith, Deputy Director – Policy & Planning Other department staff and interested citizens
ROLL CALL	President Kahn called the meeting to order at 9:39 a.m., noting that three out of five commissioners were present. Commissioners McCray and Singh were present alongside President Kahn. Commissioners Semel and Yamasaki were having technical difficulties; they successfully accessed the Zoom commission meeting at 9:50am.
AGENDA	On motion of Commissioner McCray, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission adopted the agenda as posted.
MINUTES	On motion of Commissioner McCray, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission adopted the minutes of the April 22, 2021 Regular Meeting as circulated.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT	Executive Director Trent Rhorer furnished an update regarding federal, state and local activities.
	FEDERAL Executive Director Rhorer provided an update on the American Rescue Plan, introduced by President Biden and passed by Congress, as it impacts the households served at HSA. Child tax credits include \$3,600 per child five years old and younger. Payments will begin July 1. This is in addition to the \$1,400 federal stimulus payments these families have already received. It is a monthly payment for the first six months. This is a large influx of cash and financial support for low and middle income families who need it, and can lift literally millions of households out of poverty for 2021. The first round of state and local recovery act funds will be allocated this week. These

are funds that go directly to cities, counties and states. California counties overall will receive \$8.1B. San Francisco's allocation closes the City's budget deficit. The federal money did what it was intended to do, which was to close local governments' deficits so that vital services are not cut.

STATE

1

The Governor's May Revise was released a couple of weeks ago. The State of California is experiencing a huge windfall of \$14.3B in addition to \$26B from Biden's American Rescue Plan. With a \$40B surplus, Governor Newsom recognizes the need in our communities and is not saving the funds for a rainy day. Executive Director Rhorer summarized the allocation of funds impacting Agency programs:

- 1. Homelessness programs within HSA: the CalWORKs housing support program receives a fivefold increase in investment; the Bringing Families Home program, a rental subsidy pilot program, receives \$280M; and the housing assistance program for disabled individuals receives \$175M, up from \$25M, to fund rental subsidies and social workers. The alternative housing program that HSA and the City created by providing 2,500 hotel rooms for COVID-vulnerable homeless receives \$150M for operation and transition costs. \$2.75B statewide will be distributed to cities to assist with the purchase of hotels to house the homeless community. The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing is in charge of these purchases for San Francisco in coordination and partnership with HSA. The City has already purchased two hotels, with a plan for a third purchase. Ultimately five to six buildings will be purchased and permanently owned by the City.
- 2. Medi-Cal receives \$69M in the next year to expand benefits for undocumented individuals over the age of 60. The existing program provides benefits to those 65 and older. The program will cost \$1B if it goes to the legislature, which it should. IHSS also receives funding as the two programs are linked.
- 3. The Governor is proposing a CalWORKs grant increase of 5.3% to try to bring these families up to a safety net that can actually support them. In San Francisco, per local ordinance, an increase in a CalWORKs grant also means the same increase for CAAP.
- 4. A budget initiative sponsored by CWDA (the County Welfare Directors Association), in conjunction with the City of San Francisco, to provide six months of cash aid to parents whose children have been placed outside the home while they are on CalWORKs, receives \$8.7M. This cash aid truly assists parents unify with their children.
- 5. For Family and Children's Services and child welfare, \$122M, which is significantly more than the \$75M requested by counties, goes to counties to support the implementation of the Families First Prevention Act. Counties will be given funding to develop Child and Family Well Being System Prevention Plans, which will get them in the federal clearing house to pave the way to receive federal dollars. \$25M will support payments to emergency caregivers for up to four months, and up to one year with good cause, for placements made prior to a caregiver's completion of the resource family approval (RFA) process. This makes it possible to place children with relatives while they are going through the process and recognizes that the RFA process can be long.
- 6. The Governor budgeted almost \$40M for counties that serve foster youth with complex needs and behavioral health conditions, known as high-needs youth. This funding will help offset a lot of local investments HSA has been making in this area.
- 7. \$9M goes to cash aid and support though the end of the year for non-minor dependents and non-minor dependents who have aged out of the program, meaning those who will turn 21 between July and December of this year.

Proposed budget investments in the May Revise that do not go through HSA programs but help our clients include emergency rental assistance to cover 100% of back rent owed by low-income Californians, \$2B in utility assistance, universal transitional kindergarten for all four-year-olds in the state phased over four years, and a significant investment in child care including 100,000 new subsidized child care slots. This governor, unlike any other governor Executive Director Rhorer has worked under as a county executive, really values the need to support low income Californians. He understands the system as he came from local government. Executive Director Rhorer "couldn't be more pleased" seeing these investments made by the governor.

LOCAL

There are several Agency staffing updates. Kelly Dearman was appointed Director of the Department of Disability and Aging Services. She began her new role on Monday, May 24. Kelly was a Human Services Commissioner, the Executive Director of the San Francisco In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) Public Authority, and worked in the City Attorney's office on the child welfare dependency team. Executive Director Rhorer is extremely pleased that Ms. Dearman has joined the Agency.

The Communications team welcomes Maria Mejia Rojas as the new social media manager. She comes to the Agency from Children Now in Oakland, where she ran the nonprofit's social media channels. Maria is bilingual and will help broaden our Agency's reach on social media.

Mary Adrian, the Program Manager of SFBN, is retiring at the end of June after 28 years with the Agency. She was the Medi-Cal Program Manager for five years, Medi-Cal Program Director for four years, and the SF BenefitsNet Director, her current role, for the past three years. Mary is an excellent program director and great at team building and boosting morale. She is very responsive, always ready to assist with complicated cases. Her legacy is Medi-Cal during the Affordable Care Act, enrolling 60,000 people and doubling Agency caseload. Many San Franciscans aged 16-64 received health insurance for the first time largely due to Mary's leadership. John Tsutakawa with Family & Children's Services is retiring after over 25 years of service with HSA at the end of June. John started his City career in 1993. He served as a program director in Family and Children Services (FCS) for seven years and Contracts Director for four years before returning to FCS in April 2020. Executive Director Rhorer thanked John for taking over the contracts director role at a time when the department needed steady and consistent leadership.

Clive Lazarus, Family & Children's Services Family Support Unit Supervisor, is retiring at the end of June after 23 years of service. Clive is a genuinely caring person and it showed in his interactions with clients and colleagues alike.

COVID-19

The Mayor announced an enormous rental relief program on May 28 totaling \$90M to support vulnerable San Francisco tenants impacted by COVID. This program is in addition to the state's program mentioned earlier. The Mayor's Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) is administering the new program with community-based organizations. We are working closely with MOHCD and using our communications channels and social media accounts to get the word out to our households in need of rental assistance.

The City will receive 887 new emergency housing vouchers from HUD to help house over 1,000 people through what used to be called Section 8 and is now called the Housing Choice Voucher program.

The Board of Supervisors is very interested in food support. Supervisor Ronen held a hearing about COVID food security and our response last week. Susie Smith presented for HSA—our Agency is the lead for the City's emergency food program. Supervisor Safai is introducing legislation to establish a "Food Empowerment Markets Fund" to create markets where people can shop for free and subsidized food as opposed to standing in line for a box of prepackaged food. The markets allow people to choose the food that they want and need while encouraging independence and providing dignity. Supervisor Safai is calling on HSA to lead the effort. The Supervisor is also working on legislation to require the Department of Public Health to provide a biannual report on food security in San Francisco. Executive Director Rhorer anticipates that this is all to tee up discussions in budget hearings next month where the Board is going to invest significantly in additional food support for our families.

ADMIN/FINANCE

The Mayor's budget will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors on June 1 and will be presented in person. Executive Director Rhorer will walk through the budget during the June commission meeting after the Board of Supervisors budget hearings. The City is on a reopening path. The Board of Supervisors will be meeting in person beginning June 7. Commissions will continue to meet remotely through the summer. As HSA moves into a post-pandemic world, the City and Executive Director Rhorer are committed to making use of what has been learned over the last year with telecommuting. The Mayor directed that we maximize telecommuting during COVID. The Agency is looking at what telecommuting looks like for our programs. It is very complex work since our programs are so different from one another. We anticipate Agency telecommuting plans will be finalized in the next two months. Executive Director Rhorer prefers a mix of in office and telecommuting where possible. Telecommuting is good for the environment, good for families and work/life balance, and improves morale. However, we must be on site to provide services to our clients.

The Agency's DEIB office continues to implement the Agency's racial equity plan. The Agency will soon be releasing an employee resource group policy, which will allow staff to form employee resource groups, also known as affinity groups. In June, the Office of DEIB in partnership with the Learning and Organizational Development Team will begin to host monthly lunchtime discussions with staff to foster more discussion about and understanding of racial equity topics. The first Lunch and Learn will be hosted with DAS first, followed by FCS then ESSS. The Office of DEIB continues the Agency's participation in the Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE). DEIB staff recently attended a three-day virtual GARE annual meeting where they connected with other racial equity leaders in government across the country. The Office of DEIB continues to work with the Department of Human Resources (DHR) to increase the diversity of job applicant pools through increased communication with job seekers, increased advertising of open job opportunities, department spotlights hosted by DHR with potential job applicants, and relationship building with diverse community organizations and professional associations.

ESSS

Noelle Simmons has departed the Agency as Deputy Director of ESSS. Dan Kaplan continues to be the Deputy Director of Finance and Administration and is also acting Deputy Director of ESSS.

SFBN

We have been operating under a broad range of waivers to reduce in-person visits during the pandemic. The waivers made it easier for clients to start or continue receiving benefits. Some examples of the various waivers include CalWORKs eligibility waivers for work verification, intake interviews and time on aid, refugee cash assistance waivers for verifying immigration status, and CalFresh eligibility waivers to simplify the eligibility process. These waivers all have different end dates. The workload will soon resume at the same level as before the pandemic. It is important for us to inform our clients of these changes so that they do not fall off of benefits, and determine what the increase in workload means for our telecommuting workforce.

FAMILY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES (FCS)

This month is Foster Care Awareness & Resource Family Appreciation month. Our employee of the month, Danielle Turner, plays an integral role in the success of our foster care program. More about that later in the meeting.

The total number of adoptions for 2020 was 65, which we are very proud of given the challenges of the pandemic. We continue to focus on long-term foster care kids and what more we can do to find them permanent homes.

The 2021 Independent Living Skills graduation ceremony will be held at 5pm on June 8 virtually. In spite of the challenges that occurred because of the pandemic, several foster youth are on track to graduate from high school and begin their freshman year in college and a few non-minor dependents will be graduating from college.

4

	The FCS nursing staff is working closely with the Department of Public Health and our Protective Services Workers to schedule appointments for non-minor dependents and youth between the ages of 12 and 17 to receive the COVID vaccine.
	Beginning this month, resource family caregivers will be issued annual identification cards to show that they are approved Resource Family Caregivers with the San Francisco Human Services Agency. The cards will be used to provide verification at medical appointments, school enrollment and other activities, and when submitting and collecting documents.
	Four Protective Services Workers from FCS were honored at the 2021 Foster Care Youth Services year-end celebration. They received the Supportive Adult Award for their advocacy and support of their clients currently enrolled in the San Francisco Unified School District. The award recipients are Chabrika Bowers, Ligia Morell, Kelsey Parsons and John Viet.
	Upon completion of Executive Director Rhorer's report, Commissioner McCray and President Kahn welcomed Ms. Dearman to the Agency.
	Commissioner Semel was curious about implicit bias training, if we have it or feel like we need it. Executive Director Rhorer responded that indeed implicit bias training is important, needed and exists in the Agency. Executive staff has already gone through implicit bias training. There is a training schedule and he will forward it to Commissioner Semel.
EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH AWARD	President Kahn announced DANIELLE TURNER, ACTING SUPERVISOR, RESOURCE FAMILY APPROVAL (RFA) TEAM, FAMILY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES, as the May 2021 Employee of the Month. The Commission recognized Danielle for her commitment to resource families. She was awarded an engraved desk clock. Along with many colleagues, Danielle's family attended the commission meeting in support of her well- deserved award.
CONSENT CALENDAR	 On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved and ratified actions taken by the Executive Director since the April 22, 2021 Regular Meeting in accordance with Commission authorization of May 27, 2021: Submission of request to encumber funds in the total amount of \$9,633,707 for purchase of services or supplies and contingency amounts. Submission of 1 temporary position for possible use in order to fill positions on a temporary basis made during the period 4/13/21 to 5/11/21. Submission of 26 temporary appointments for possible use in order to fill positions on a temporary basis made during the period 4/13/21 to 5/11/21.
FAMILY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PLAN	Liz Crudo, Program Manager, Family & Children's Services, presented the request for approval from the Commission for the SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PLAN ("SIP").
	Commissioner McCray asked Ms. Crudo if she anticipates a growing or declining caseload over the next five years, to which she replied caseloads have declined over time, which is the general trend in child welfare. The Family First Prevention Services Act (FFPSA) will begin this October if San Francisco opts in. We will be able to capitalize on prevention services that will help keep families out of the system.
	On motion of Commissioner Singh, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the Family and Children's Services SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PLAN.
INSTITUTO FAMILIAR DE LA RAZA	Liz Crudo, Program Manager, Family & Children's Services, presented the request to enter into a new grant agreement with INSTITUTO FAMILIAR DE LA RAZA.

	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to enter into a new grant agreement with INSTITUTO FAMILIAR DE LA RAZA for differential response services; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2026; in the amount of \$1,448,015, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$1,462,495.
COMPASS FAMILY SERVICES	Jason Holte, Senior Fiscal Strategies Analyst, Office of Early Care & Education, presented the request to enter into a new grant agreement with COMPASS FAMILY SERVICES.
	Commissioner Semel asked how many families are served. Mr. Holte responded that 350 families are served per year.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to enter into a new grant agreement with COMPASS FAMILY SERVICES for homeless early care and education case management; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024; in the amount of \$2,121,000, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$2,333,100.
DRESS FOR SUCCESS SAN FRANCISCO	Adriana Duran, Community Services Program Specialist, Welfare to Work Services, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with DRESS FOR SUCCESS SAN FRANCISCO.
	Commissioner Semel stated her support for the services provided by Dress for Success.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with DRESS FOR SUCCESS SAN FRANCISCO for the provision of interview suiting services; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$97,300, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$107,030.
ARRIBA JUNTOS	Marlén Sánchez, Community Services Program Specialist, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with ARRIBA JUNTOS.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with ARRIBA JUNTOS for the provision of VIP/VESL programs; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$3,650,976, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$4,016,074.
EXEMPLAR HUMAN SERVICES	*Note a change in order from the agenda. The Examplar Human Services contract was presented before the Arriba Juntos transitional employment for re-engagement and work participation activities program contract during the meeting, even though Arriba Juntos should have been presented first per the approved agenda.
	Marlén Sánchez, Community Services Program Specialist, presented the request to enter into a new contract agreement with EXEMPLAR HUMAN SERVICES.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to enter into a new contract agreement with EXEMPLAR HUMAN SERVICES for the provision of report and analytic services to support the CalWORKs Program; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024; in the amount of \$906,000, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$996,600.

ARRIBA JUNTOS	Marlén Sánchez, Community Services Program Specialist, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with ARRIBA JUNTOS.
	On motion of Commissioner Singh, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with ARRIBA JUNTOS for the provision of transitional employment for re-engagement and work participation activities program; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$4,692,125, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$5,161,338.
ARRIBA JUNTOS	Christina Iwasaki, Community Services Manager, Welfare-to-Work Services, stepped in for Jiro Arase who was having technical issues and presented the request to renew the grant agreement with ARRIBA JUNTOS. She also presented three additional contracts.
	Commissioner Semel asked if the four agencies providing employment services to formerly and currently at-risk homeless individuals meet together and if so, how often. Ms. Iwasaki affirmed that they do meet quarterly.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with ARRIBA JUNTOS for the provision of employment services to formerly and currently at-risk homeless individuals; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022; in the amount of \$270,180, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$297,198.
COMMUNITY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP	Christina Iwasaki, Community Services Manager, Welfare-to-Work Services, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with COMMUNITY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with COMMUNITY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP for the provision of employment services to formerly and currently at-risk homeless individuals; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022; in the amount of \$350,200, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$385,220.
EPISCOPAL COMMUNITY SERVICES OF SF INC.	Christina Iwasaki, Community Services Manager, Welfare-to-Work Services, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with EPISCOPAL COMMUNITY SERVICES OF SF INC.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with EPISCOPAL COMMUNITY SERVICES OF SF INC. for the provision of employment services to formerly and currently at-risk homeless individuals; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022; in the amount of \$256,287, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$281,916.
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SF, SAN MATEO & MARIN	Christina Iwasaki, Community Services Manager, Welfare-to-Work Services, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SF, SAN MATEO & MARIN.
	On motion of Commissioner Singh, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SF, SAN MATEO & MARIN for the provision of employment services to formerly and currently at-risk homeless individuals; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022; in the amount of \$148,904, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$163,794.

RICHMOND AREA MULTI-SERVICES	Jiro Arase, Community Services Program Specialist, presented the request to modify the existing grant agreement with RICHMOND AREA MULTI-SERVICES.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to modify the existing grant agreement with RICHMOND AREA MULTI-SERVICES for the provision of CalWORKS behavioral health and pre-vocational services; for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022; for an additional amount of \$722,833, plus a 10% contingency, for a revised total amount not to exceed \$5,341,841.
FISCAL EXPERT, INC.	Joseph Huang, Finance Director, presented the request to renew the contract agreement with FISCAL EXPERT, INC.
	On motion of Commissioner Singh, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the contract agreement with FISCAL EXPERT, INC. for provision of web-based time study services; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$300,000, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$330,000.
ALLIED UNIVERSAL SECURITY SERVICES	Vladimir Rudakov, Director of Investigations/Program Integrity, presented the request to modify the existing contract agreement with ALLIED UNIVERSAL SECURITY SERVICES.
SERVICES	On motion of Commissioner McCray, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to modify the existing contract agreement with ALLIED UNIVERSAL SECURITY SERVICES for the provision of HSA Security Guard Services; for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023; for an additional amount of \$8,562,286, plus contingency, for a revised total amount not to exceed \$23,393,091.
211 SAN DIEGO	Jeimil Belamide, Program Manager, Policy, Outreach, & Staff Training, CalFresh & Medi-Cal, presented the request to enter into a new grant agreement with 211 SAN DIEGO.
	On motion of Commissioner Singh, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to enter into a new grant agreement with 211 SAN DIEGO for the provision of CalFresh & Medi-Cal Telephone Application Assistance; for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024; in the amount of \$971,824, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$1,069,006.
HUCKLEBERRY YOUTH PROGRAMS	Karina Zhang, Program Support Analyst with Family & Children's Services, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with HUCKLEBERRY YOUTH PROGRAMS.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with HUCKLEBERRY YOUTH PROGRAMS for the provision of crisis intervention and case management services for Commercially Sexually Exploited Children/Young Adult; for the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$1,026,400, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$1,129,040.
SENECA FAMILY OF AGENCIES	Vlada Gulchin, Administrative Analyst, Family & Children's Services, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with SENECA FAMILY OF AGENCIES.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with SENECA FAMILY OF AGENCIES to provide secure transportation for foster children and youth;

	for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$200,000, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$220,000.
EDGEWOOD CENTER FOR CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES	Irina Kadantseva, Senior Administrative Analyst, presented the request to modify the existing grant agreement with EDGEWOOD CENTER FOR CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES.
	On motion of Commissioner McCray, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to modify the existing grant agreement with EDGEWOOD CENTER FOR CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES for the provision of kinship services; for the period of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2022; for an additional amount of \$565,805, plus a 10% contingency, for a revised total amount not to exceed \$3,600,293.
NALLS FOUNDATION	Irina Kadantseva, Senior Administrative Analyst, presented the request to renew the grant agreement with NALLS FOUNDATION.
	On motion of Commissioner Semel, seconded and unanimously carried, the Commission approved the request to renew the grant agreement with the NALLS FOUNDATION for an emergency placement program for non-minor dependents; for the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; in the amount of \$160,000, plus a 10% contingency, for a total amount not to exceed \$176,000.
PUBLIC COMMENT	President Kahn's call for public comment yielded no responses.
	President Kelone diamondation Consistence Commission May 07, 0001 Develop

ADJOURNMENT President Kahn adjourned the Human Services Commission May 27, 2021 Regular Meeting at 11:20 a.m.

Eyna e

Elizabeth LaBarre, Commission Secretary Human Services Commission

Posted: 6.11.2021